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Learning in. Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees report
For the year ended 31 August 2023

The Trustees present their annual report together with the f nancial statements and auditors’ report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes:
of both a Trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

Principal activities

The pnncnpal actlwty of the Learnlng in Harmony Multi Academy trust is to advance for the public benefit
education in the United Kingdom, in particular by establishing, . maintaining and carrying on, managing and
‘developmg schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum. )

For the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 the Trust operated 10 academies based in the London
Borough of Newham, the City of Southend-on-Sea and the London Borough of Islington. The Connaught Special
School was officially opened on 1st September 2023 in the new financial year.

In the census taken on 7th October 2023 the schools had the foIIowing number of pupils on roll:

London Borough of Newham:

. John F Kennedy Spemal School, for puplls aged 4 to 19. A pup|I capacuty of 141 and had aroll of 182
e Sheringham Primary School, for pupils aged 4 to 11. A pupil capacity of 690 and had a roll of 608.
e Upton Cross Primary School, for pupils aged 3 to 11. A pupil capacity of 1200, and had a roll of 637. '
e Hartley Primary School, for pupils aged 3 to 11. A pupil capacity of 960 and had a roll of 648.
e Drew Primary school, for pupils aged 4 to 11. -A pupil capacity of 480 and a roll of 390.
o Connaught Special School, for pupils aged 41019. A pup|I capacity of 26 and a roll of 6. This school opened
on 1st September 2023.
‘Borough of Southend on-Sea: .
e Blenheim Primary School, for pupils aged 3 to 11. A pupil capacity of 676 and a roll of 630.
¢ Edwards Hall Primary School, for pupils aged 4 to 11. A pupil capacity of 420 and a roll of 409.
* Greenways Primary School for pupils aged 4 to 11. A capacity of 960 and a roll of 884.

Temple Sutton School, .for pupils ages 3 to 11. A pupil capacity of 898 and a roll of 625.
Londo'n Borough of Islington:
e The New North Academy, for pupils aged 3 to 11." A pupil capacity of 315 and a'roll of 204

"The Admissions policy for each school can be found on the Trust's website. o
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
' (A company limited by guarantee)

" Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governance and management
* Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity (registration no. 09148738) The
charitable company’s memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the. -
* Academy Trust. The Trustees of Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust are also the directors of the
charitable -company for the purposes of company Iaw The' charitable company is known as Learning in -
Harmony. :
The Directors act as the Trustees for the charitable activities of Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust and
are also Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company is known

as Learning in Harmony Trust. Details of the Directors who served throughout the period, except as noted are

included in the Reference and Administrative Detalls on page 1.

The Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust was incorporated on. 28 July 2014 and obtained Academy status
for J F Kennedy School and Sheringham Primary School from 1 September 2014, Upton Cross Primary School
from 1 September 2015, Hartley Primary School from the 1 April 2016, Drew Primary School on 1 January 2017,
Blenheim on 1 September 2016 and Greenways Primary School on 1 October 2016. Temple Sutton Primary
School joined the Trust on 1 September 2018, New North Academy joined on 1 September 2019 more recently
Edwards Hall Primary School joined on 1 December 2021.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year and to the date these accounts are approved are mcluded in
the Reference and Adminlstrative Details on page 1. .

Members' liability

' Each'mer‘nber of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable cbmpanylin the

.event of it being wound up while they are-a member, or within one year after they cease to be-a member, such
amount as may be requwed not exceeding £10*, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to.be
a member.

*As required in the Academy Trust's funding égreer_nent/memorandum and articles of association.
Trustees' indemnities

Each: Director is covered by the RPA insurance scheme rules in relation to Governor‘s Liability Expense.
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Learning in Harmohy Multi'Ac'ademy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued) = °
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governancé and management (continued)

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The members of the Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust Board shall comprise the signatories. to the
Memorandum until such time as they resign or otherwise cease to be members, and any person appointed
under Article 15A, the minimum number shall be not less than-3. '

As at 31 August 2023 there were 5 members appointed under article 15A..

_ The Articles of Association of the Trust were last renewed on 2- November 2022. Accordingly the number of
Directors shall be not less than 3, but shall not be subject to a maximum. The Learnlng In Harmony Multi
Academy Trust shall have the following Directors:

« up to 9 Directors appointed by the members,

o the Chief Executive Officer may be, and is currently, appointed as a Trustee by the members.

The parental representation at the Trust is through 2 parent governors at-each of the Local Governing Bodies.

-The Trust may also have any Co-opted Directors, a person who is appointed to be a Director by being co-opted
by Directors who have not themselves been so appointed. The Directors may not co-opt an employee of the
Muilti Academy Trust as a Co-opted Director if the number of Directors who are employed by the Multi Academy
Trust would thereby exceed one third of the total number of Directors (including the  Chief Executlve Officer and
Pnncnpals) .

Each of the persons entitled to appoint members above shall have the right, from time to time by written notice
delivered to the Office, to remove any Member appointed by them and to appoint a replacement member to fill a
vacancy whether resulting from such removal or otherwuse .

The term of office for any Director shall be 4 years, save that this time limit shall not apply to the Chief Executive.
Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Director, Directors may be reappointed or re-elected.

" Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction-and Trairiing of Trustees

Dunng the. perlod under review the Dlrectors held 5 meetmgs and one Dlrectors was appointed by the Members
. during the year, with a further two being co-opted by Dlrectors

The tramlng and induction provided for new Directors wil depend on their existing experience. All new Directors
will be given a tour of the Trust's Academies and the chance to meet with staff and students. All relevant
Directors are provided with copies of, and digital access to, policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets,
plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Directors. As there are normally only two’
or three new Directors a period, induction tends to be done informally and is tallored spemf cally to'the individual.
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governance and management {continued)

Organisational structure

The Board of Trustees has delegated responsibility for delivering the vision, mission and strategic objectives to
the Chief Executive (CEO), who is also the Accounting Officer for the multi-academy trust. The Board will hold
the CEO to account for the performance of the Trust, including the performance of the academies within the
Trust. The Board of Trustees also decides the level of delegation to the Local Governing Bodies. of the schools
-and to the Risk and Audit, Finance and HR and' Organisational Development Committees. The levels of
delegation are set out in the Board's Scheme of Delegation. The scheme of delegatlon was revrsed and adopted
in July 2021 it has been reviewed annually since then.

The Local Governlng Bodues are accountable to the Trustees They are responsrble for ensuring that the schools

are working within the vision, mission and policies of the Trust to achieve the strategic priorities and to assure

the educational and financial performance of the schools The terms of reference for the Local Governlng Bodies
will also be kept under regular review.

The Risk and Audit Commrttee and Finance Committee ensure that all the Trust's property and assets are under
the control of the Trustees, and that measures are in place to prevent losses or misuse, including maintenance
of fixed asset registers. During the 2022-2023 financial year the Risk and. Audit Committee and Finance
Committee ensured that the bank accounts, financial systems and financial records were operated by more than .
one person and that full and accurate accounting records support the proposed Trust's annual accounts. The
committees report to the Trustees, but can refer significant issues directly to Members where Trustees farl to act :
appropriately. : .

The HR and Orgar\isational Development Committee ensures that the Trust's HR policies are in line. with the
ethos and values of the organisation. The Committee ensures that there is transparency and oversight of pay
decisions, in partlcular executive pay levels. The terms of reference for th|s committee are kept under regular
review. :

1

To ensure that Trustees have the opportunity to ‘consult, inform and involve Local Governing Bodies at all levels
of the organisation, governor briefing sessions are regularly held, along with a Trust wide annual governance
day. Representatives from all Local Governing Bodies are invited to these events, and the view of governors is
sometimes formally sought when the Trustees are consuderlng changes to the ‘way that the Trust as a whole
operates .

The Trust Leadershrp Group (Executive Leaders) meets weekly and reports to the Trustee Board on.the
operational performance and strategic management of the Trust.

Trust Central Team

The academies within Learning in Harmony are supported by a central business team and central Executive
Leaders. The following roles were in place at the end of the financial year:

e Tier 1 and 2: A central team comprising a full time CEO, Deputy CEO and a Chief Operating Officer, three
Executive Head Teachers :

¢ Tier 3: HR Director, Finance Director, Head of IT, Premlses and Compliance Manager.

* Business support function staff: :Three HR Officers and a HR assistant, an ICT Operations Manager, three
management accountants, two senior finance officers, 5 finance administrators, 'a Media and
Communications Officer, a Trust Premises and Health & Safety Manager and a Trust Administration Officer.

e School improvement Team; the purpose of which is to provide domain specific expertise in areas such as
curriculum, pedagogy, SEND and leadership. |
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Learning in Harmony Multi Ac,ademy'Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)

. For the year ended 31 August 2023

. Structure, governance and management (continued) .

Central resources support the continued commonality of operational systems and activities across the Trust such
as: : : . '

Insurances and premises security

- Health and Safety Management System and Audlt

Premises Core Compliance Policy, procedures and ICT systems
Facilities Management services :

Financial software licences and banking

Three year budgeting software and licences

Meeting ESFA reporting requirements

Asset management proc'edure's and ICT systems

" HR management system and HR policies

Wellbeing, occupational health and legal advice

“Payroll processing

Recruitment processes and ICT systems and marketlng and retention actmty
MIS systems (pupil data and records and parent communication systems)
ICT 'systems, infrastructure and security '
Safeguarding processes, training and record keeping

Educational Visit risk assessments and ICT systems

Pupil level assessment systems

Governance responsibilities at school level

Central Funding was also targeted at strategic activity:

Centrahsatlon of finance transactional processing and management accounts deploylng new_financial

software systems across the Trust. -
School and organisational improvement
Curriculum development
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy-Trust
. (A company limited by guarantee) '

. “Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023
_ Structure, governance and management (continued)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trust Leadership Group comprises the Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Headteachers and the Chief
Operating Officer. The arrangements for setting their pay and remuneration are:

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

The salary and job description of the Chief Executive Officer is determined annually by the HR & Orgamsatlonal
Development Committee. The Chief Executive’s salary is based upon three elements-

‘e The total pupil numbers within the trust (taking into account any special arrangements for pupils with SpeC|aI‘

Needs) r
e An element recognising the.role as an Executive Head Teacher within the trust.
¢ An element recognising the additional responsrbllltles identified'in the CEQ job description o)

' The CEO's salary is also externally benchmarked at least every three years and in 2020 this process lead to a
defi ned CEO leadership payscale being formalised as part of the Trust Leadership Group payscale

The Trust has responded to all communlcatlon with the Department for Education with regards to the rationale '
and evidence to support decisions relating .to Executlve Pay levels and Trustees take advice from the Trusts
sollc:|tors :

Executive Head Teachers

The Trustees will approve a number of Head Teachers from within member schools who are able to
demonstrate a history of having an outstanding impact upon learning. These Executive Head Teachers will
coordinate the work of the Trust Leadership Group, be responsible for elements of the Trust’s strategic plan and
are likely to lead work in other schools — particularly sporisored academies. In 2020 the Trust Leadershlp Group
payscale was formalised.

'Chlef Operating Officer
The job description and salary of the Chief Operating Officer is evaluated and benchmarked regularly by the
Trust's external HR adwsors and in 2020 the COO Ieadershlp payscale was formalised.

In 2021 Learnmg in Harmony participated in a national Multi Academy Trust salary benchmarklng exermse and
the results were reported to the HR and Organisational Development for consideration.

2
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
" (A company limited by guarantee) -

Trustees' report (contlnued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023
_Stru_cture, governance and manageMent {continued)
. T'radeunion facility time |
Relevant union officials |

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year : . 1
Full-time equrvalent employee number e . 1’

Percentage of time spent on facillty time

Percentage of time _ ‘ ' * Number of
- . : , ‘ : - employees
1%-50% - ' S ' : 1

- 51%-99% - S _ . : ' ‘ )
100% . , ' , v . o | . : -
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time : £
Total cost of facility time L ' : 38,910
Total pay bill ' ' 33,537,946
Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time ' - %

. Paid trade union activities

Trme spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facrllty t|me ' 1,714 .%
hours '

Related parties a'nd other connected charities and organisations

Learmng in Harmony Trust does not have any reportable related partles or connected chantles and
organisations..

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Trust engages with its'employees continuously and in a number of ways to suit their different .working’
patterns. This includes regular Trust leadership, Headteacher and line manager briefings, staff training days, -
and regular visits by the Trust Leadership Group link to each school. During 2022/23 staff were consulted on the
. CPD offering and a survey was undertaken to benchmark satisfaction with CPD offered to staff. This will be
continued during 2023/24 as the Trust rolls out the Steplab training programme. We have specific staff intranet
.sites for information and news, staff updates and access to policies and a termly newsletter is produced and
distributed to aII staff. The Trust recognises unions and regularly meets W|th a joint union committee.

The Trust seeks to ensure that every employee, without exception, is treated equally and fairly and that all
‘employees are aware of their obligations under the Equality Act 2010. Our policies and procedures fully support
those with disabilities. We encourage and support.a wide diversity of applicants at the recruitment stage -and all
successful candidates undergo a health screening process to objectively advise line managers on workplace
adjustments. For those colleagues with existing disabilities or those who become disabled during their time with
the Trust, we work with them to make reasonable adjustments to working practices and/or environment in order
to keep the employee safe, ‘and effective. We endeavour to ensure that the recruitment, training, career
development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be |dent|ca| to that of other

. employees. ‘

" The trust was a founder signatory of the DfE Staff Wellbeing Charter.
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Learning in Harmony Muiti Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees"report‘(continued) ‘
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governance and management (continued)

“Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust

The Trust recognises that as a public service education provider it needs to engage with its external
stakeholders, which include suppliers, service providers and most importantly its parents and carers, children
and wider communities,in strict accordance with the Seven Principles of Public Life.

Objectives and activities
Objects and aims

In the Learmng in Harmony Trust we believe that donng things in harmony means a commitment to workmg
collaboratively and effectively using everyone’s strengths to meet a common aim. This does not mean that all
“schools in our Trust have to be the same; we are proud to have both similarities and differences, and we see this
_ diversity and each school's unique characteristics as a strength. We are, however, bound together by our belief
that, by workmg in partnership as one organisation, we can make a signifi icant difference to the children and
young people in our schools. We are committed to identifying and sharing good practice and being guided by
research, to improve provision for all, and see ourselves: as mutually accountable for each other’s schools. Thrs
means that we show a genuine commitment to supporting and challenging each other. '

The Learning in Harmony Trust's objects are as follows:

- to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, through establlshlng and maintaining
schools’ offering a broad and. balanced curriculum, this includes alternative provision schools and special
education schools;

-~ to provide facilities for recreation and leisure for those within our communltles with the object of |mprovmg

the condition of life for those within our communities; :

- 'to promote physical, intellectual and. social development of children under fi ve, especially those who are
socially and economically disadvantaged. . . '

Learning in Harmony Trust has four key values:

" We Enable Everyone to Succeed

e Strong relationships built on a foundation of trust and honesty, coupled with high asplratlons for all our
learners; enable us to strive for excellence.

. Support and challenge is at the heart of what we do and we have a relentless focus on the best possible
outcomes for all our learners.

We Act with Integrity

* We believe in doing things the nght way.

e We are not a top down orgamsatlon and effective collaboratlon is at the heart of what we do. Our schools are
“not identical and each has its own unique strengths. This approach enables us to continue our learning
journey in a harmonious and rewarding way. '

We are a Nurturlng Communlty
“s  We know that it is vital to nurture and grow the whole child, regardless of their background, to provude all with
an opportunity to succeed.
o We strongly believe that learners flounsh when they are weII looked after, thrs starts W|th our staff happy and
fulfilled staff have the greatest |mpact upon puprl learning. .

We Encourage Innovation
e Our approach to professronal development is bespoke and enabling, and there are many opportunltles to
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust.
(A company limited by guarantee) -

Trustees' report (continued)-
For the year ended 31 August 2023

- Objectives and activities (continued)

learn from others both within and outside of the Trust
o  Because we act with integrity, our innovative approach is always underpmned by the best research.

We encourage our staff to continue to learn and to take risks in their practice to support our quest for excellence.
Public benefit

The Directors confirm that they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission's general
guidance -on Public Benefit when reviewing the Multi-Academy Trust’'s aim and objectives and in planning. future
activities. In particular, the Directors consider how-planned activities will contribute to the aims and objectives
" they have set. Our charitable objective is Education for Public Benefit.

The Trust works with the Local Authorities in which its schools are based to ensure that the catchment areas are

clearly defined as part of the joint local admission arrangements. The admissions policy for each school defines
_its catchment area and admissions criteria, these are published on the schools’ websites and as part of the Local
- Authority admissions schemes. Pupils are admitted if they meet the admissions criteria as published.

A small number of volunteer adults support in some of the Trust's schools where it is deemed appropriate for the
pupils and the context of the school. Volunteers are generally engaged in reading activities with our pupils, this
will have been beneficial to puplls needing support and practlse reading aloud to gain ¢onfidence.

Strategic report

The four key areas of focus for the academlc year 2022 2023 identified by trustees and Trust Leadership Group

were: .

o To ensure that the Quality of Education continues to be at least good in all schools

e To .ensure that the provision for SEND pupils and vulnerable pupils (both current and planned new
provisions) is of high quality.

¢ To ensure the Trust continues to thrive during a-period of financial challenge

s Toensure that quality leadership is in a place that is sustainable, affordable and effective.

These priorities were determined by analysis of the MAT Assurance Framework, national priorities for education
and other changes, such as the introduction of new National Professional Qualifications (NPQs).- In addition,
areas had been identified for action through our School Improvement Cycle, part of a wider strategy for school
improvement.- : .
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‘ Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report {continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Objectives and activities (continued)
Achievements and Performance

' Quality of Education

The Quality of Educatlon m all of our schools is good or better, with 80% havmg been inspected on the current
Ofsted framework. -

As a Trust, we have worked collaboratively on an approach to the curriculum which is broadly aligned to the .
National Curriculum, ensuring that learning is ambitious for all, well-sequenced and coherent, and-that decisions
‘about design and content are based on an understanding of cognitive science. This has not been about
delivering the same curriculum in every school; the schools in our Trust are unique and whilst there is alignment
in mission, vision and values, the curriculum offer needs to respond to each school’s individual context. The
process that schools have been through in designing their curriculum and that which they continue to reflect on,
is however, more consistent. Our curriculum leaders have learnt about habits of effective curriculum design, and
this begins with schools identifying the purpose of education for their school, setting clear visions for their
subjects, defining the key concepts that will be the golden threads for their curriculum and setting challenging
end points. Our subject network groups have formed and developed over this year to collaborate on these
things and create a supportive culture, which enables them to learn together, share ideas and ultimately, improve
the quality. of education. in their own schools. A similar approach is used in our special schools and specialist
provisions, but learning in these contexts is highly personalised and dependent on priorities in the student's
EHCP and based on an ongoing assessment of their needs. . :

In addition to this focus on curriculum development, we have enabled the deployment of a centralised School
Improvement Team with domain specific expertise in areas such as pedagogy, curriculum, assessment and
SEND. This team provides training, builds additional capacity in schools which supports their continued
improvement, and provides an outreach offer to partner organisations. To enhance our approach to improving
every teacher in every classroom, we have invested time and resources into utilising Steplab as a tool for
incremental coaching, with further work planned on its implementation in 23/24.

Provision for SEND pupils _ ' : -

Provision for SEND pupils continues to be a strength across the .Learning in Harmony Trust: the JFK Special
School was reinspected in November 2022 and continues to be recognised as an outstanding provision; we
‘opened ours and Southend’s third primary Autism Resource Base at Greenways Primary School; and opened
the Connaught Special School and centre of excellence.

To ensure that our provision continues to improve, the Trust implemented-year one of a two-year SEND audit
process, collaborating with the Eastern SEND Partnership; the findings of the initial audits were triangulated with
the Quality of Education audit process. This significant area of our work is ensuring that the learning and
engagement of all young people on the SEND register is improving because of the leadership and development
of SEND in all schools. It has been enhanced by researching and delivering training on the Bexley Toolkit -
across all schools, which provides support, guidance and practical suggestions for teachers, enabling them to
better meet the needs of their pupils through quality first teaching. :

Thriving during a period of financial challenge

Through careful management of budgets throughout the 2022/23 financial year, the Trust has managed to
mitigate the additional costs of the teaching staff pay award, costs which were not known at the time the 2022/23
budget was set. This has been largely achieved through a voluntary severance scheme, which has enabled
schools to review structures, with staff approaching school leaders on a voluntary basis; this has enabled the
trust to plan workforce structures that meet the needs of a falling pupil rolls locally and nationally.

A key project for the 2022/23 financial year has been the centralisation of finance, inclnding tran.sactional and

management accounting, as well as the deployment of three new financial systems, providing greater
consistency and control within the financial arena. -
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

" Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Objectives and activ.ities {continued)
Quality Leadership’

“High quallty tramlng and development structures are in place to prowde leaders with the skills, knowledge and
expertise that the Trust requires now and in the future.

There is a commjtment to coaching within the Trust and we have continued to provide opportunities for leaders
to engage with an external coach; all Executive Leaders, Head Teachers and Heads of School have received
regular coaching throughout the. academic year. In addition, members of the Trust Leadership Group provide
regular coaching and mentoring to heads through our approach to supporting all schools with a linked member of
the executive team. ‘

Leaders at all levels, from aspiring Ieaders to Ekecu'tive Head Teachers have had the opportunity to take part in
a structured coaching conversation based around the trust's leadership competences. All members of senior

. leadership teams in schools and central team leaders have also taken part in Action Learning Sets- facilitated

discussion to support their leadership development. Over the course of this year we have established our own’
development programme for new Assistant and Deputy Head Teachers, and a total' of 38 leaders have
- participated in the new suite of NPQs.

A cohort of aspiring SENCOs have completed the National Award for SEN Coordinators (NASENCO) mcreasmg
capacity across the trust in SEND leadership.

We are committed to creating a Ieadership pathway for all staff; for our teachets this begins with.an excellent
- ECT programme in partnership with Ambition Institute, and from September 2024 we will be a lead partner for
~ Ambition’s ITT provision, enabling us to support teachers fro‘m the very start of their career in the classroom.

Operational effectiveness

Durmg the financial year, the Trust delivered a prOJect to centralise finance transaction processing and to
centrally provide financial support to .all schools within the Trust. The project included delivering three new
financial systems that utilise automation and machine Iearnlng to increase the efficiency. of transactional
. processing. Building efficiency and safety was also an area.of enhanced focus during the financial year, with full
surveys undertaken of all trust buildings to identify energy efficiency projects and fire compartmentallsatlon
surveys undertaken to clanfy the scope of activities for fire door remedlal works.
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A Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee) )

Trustees' report (c’ontinuéd)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

(continued)

Key Financial Performance Indicators

The Trustees are of the opinion that glven the nature of the management of the business the _key metrics which
require specific monitoring are:

Outcomes based:

_ e Ofsted inspection outcomes. -

. Key stage results - the latest results publlshed on our websnes areas for 18/1 ]
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Context based :

Student numbers- which prowdes the basis for funding from the EFSA
Pay % of Total income

Number of teachers o

Teachers payroll costand . S ‘

Average teacher cost -

Number of students per teacher

Debtors % over 60 days

t

Goihg concern . _
After making approbriate enquiries, the board of Trustees a'greed on’'27 September 2023 that it has a reasonable
expectation that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in’ operataonal existence for the
foreseeable future. For'this reéason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial

statements. Further details regardlng the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of
Accounting Policies.
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‘Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
- (A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

(continued) |

Promoting success of the company

A key focus of the Trustee Board during the 2022/2023 financial year was holding the Executive Team to
account for ensuring that pupils were safe and happy and continuing to receive a well sequenced learning offer.
During the year, Trustees invited Trust Leadership Group members to attend Trustee Board meetings in order to
understand and reassure themselves of the work of the Trust. As an example of this commitment to
accountability the board of Trustees established a new Quality of Education committee at the start of the
academic year, the committee has rigorously scrutinised the Trust's school "improvement strategy. and
framework. ‘ - ~ ' :

Trustees actively .attended governing body meetings and participated in a visioning workshop in July 2023 as
part of the vision and values refresh working being undertaken across the 2022/23 and 2023/24 academic years.

Trustees received regular progress reports during the year, in particular relating to the proposed opening of the
Connaught Special Free School in Newham; and in relation to potential opportunities for growth.

Three new Trustees were appointed during the financial year; these appointments enhanced and complimented
the existing education sector and financial skills within the Board. A further skills review was conducted in the
summer term which enabled the board to actively consider future appointments and succession planning to key
Trustee Board roles. . . :

Financial Review

Most.of the Multi Academy's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the
form of recurrent grants, some of which are restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA
during the period ended 31 August 2023 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the
Statement of Financial Activities. The Multi Academy Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the ESFA.
“In accordance with the Charities Statement of Recommended Practice, *Accounting and Reporting by Charities’
(SORP 2015), such grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed
asset fund.

The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life
of the assets concerned. During the period ended 31 August 2023, total expenditure of £49,397k (2022:
48,897k) was met by recurrent grant funding from the ESFA together with other incoming resources.

The excess of expenditure over income for the penod (excluding restncted fixed asset funds, pension transferred
on conversion/transfer and transfers to restricted fixed asset funds) was £488k (2022: 239k). At 31 August 2023
the net book value of fixed assets was £93,141k’ (2022: £94,787k). Movements in tangible fixed assets are :
shown in note 15, to the financial statements The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the
associated support services to the pupils of the Multi Academy Trust. The Newham Council Pension Fund,
Essex Council and Islington Council, which the Trust participates, showed a deficit of £614k (2022: £5,446k) on
31 August 2023.
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Learning in Harmony Multi Aca,de'my Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Reserves policy

The Directors review the reserve-levels of the Multi Academy Trust annually. This review encompasses the
nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of
-reserves. The Directors determined that the appropriate level of free reserves in 2022/23 should be equivalent to
one month’s payroll expenditure, approximately £1,500k; the reason for this is to provide sufficient reserves to
cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and unexpected emergencies. The Directors agreed to the
use of reserves in the 2022/23 financial year in order to achieve centralisation efficiencies; in addition a
programme of act|V|ty to create savings in future years has been agreed. The Multi Academy Trust's current
level of free reserves of £2,649k (2022:£2,684k) (total funds less the amount held in fixed assets and restncted
funds)

N

_ Investment policy

" Under the Memorandum and,Articles of Association, the Trust has the power to invest funds not immediately
required for its own purposes, in any way the Directors see fit. The organisation has a positive cash balance to
cover eventualities and unforeseen expenses. The banking facilities are reviewed on a regular basis. -

’

Principal risks and uncert'aintiesv

One of the main financial risks that the Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust has always had exposure to,

taking account of the mitigations in place, relate the risk of an income ‘shortfall due to the likelihood of further:
government spending reductions affecting our general grant, and. further unfunded pay awards for teachers and
support staff. :

This risk is mitigated by careful management of Trust funds and a comprehenswe budgeting process which -
includes scenario planning for different fundlng modes.

Other risks identified by Dlrectors include:

e The need to balance both the desire to grow and the capacity to grow
o Arisk arises in relation to the defined benefit pensuon scheme, due to the fact that there is a defcnt of £614k
_ (2022: £5,446k)
Rising inflation, utilities costs and teaching and support staff pay awards
Estates management: namely managing the Blenheim Prlmary School Estate whllst waiting for the school to
be redeveloped under the School Rebuilding Programme (phase 3)

The Trust maintains a comprehenswe Risk Reglster listing all identified risks and specifying current mmgatlon
and additional mitigation to be put in place. This is regularly reviewed and updated by the Trust Leadership
"Group, and has been regularly approved by Directors.
The Directors have assessed the major risks to which the Multi Academy Trust is exposed, in particular those
relating specifically to teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Trust, and its finances.
The Directors have implemented a number of systems' to assess risks that the Trust's schools face, especially in
_the operational areas (e.g. in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and school trips) and in relation to
the control of finance. The Directors continue to ensure that systems, including operational procedures of
internal financial controls are reviewed and refined in order to minimise risk. Where significant financial risk still
remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The Multi Academy Trust has an effective
system of internal financial controls.
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‘Learning in ‘Harmonyv Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee) -

Trustees’ report (Continued) .

For the year ended 31 August 2923

Fundraising

The Trust's strength and capacity means that it is a strong position for growth. ThlS may include opportunities to
grow from the DfE, through partnerships with other single or.multi-academy trusts, or through converter
academies. There are also opportunities for outreach work across the sector.

The Trust engaged the services of an external fundraising consultant to suppon wuth bid writing and grant
funding applications. .

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting :

The Academy's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption are as follows:

2023 2022

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) ' - - 5,794,711 8,237,604
Scope 1 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent): - ‘ ' : ) _—

- Gas consumption . o : o 768 1,014
Owned transport . i ‘ o 5 1
Total scope1 . A , S 773 1,015
Scope 2 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent): '

Purchased electricity ' : ‘ » : ‘ . 377 , 635
Total grose emissions (in tonnes of C02 eqoivalent): g o ‘ - 1,150 1,650
Intensity ratio: - ' :
" Tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil = - o : S 0 0.03

Quantification and Reportmg Methodology:- : : : ' .
¢ We have followed the 2019 HM Government EnV|ronmenta| Reportlng Guidelines. We have also used the

GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2022 UK Government's Conversron ,
_Factors for Company Reporting.

.. Intensity measurement :
The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metrlc tonnes COZe per pupil, the:
recommended ratio for the sector. .

~ Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

LED nghtlng, Solar panels, increased video conferencung reducing staff travel, upgraded boilers plants, installing
smart meters, Review of BMS systems programmes usmg cIoud computing where p033|ble to reduce-the use of
loca| servers .
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

't"rustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

‘ Plans for-future periods

The Trustees have endorsed the Trust Improvement: Plan 2023/24 which sets out the key priority areas as
follows: S . .

‘Consolidation and completion phase
Ensure that our key ongoing initiatives are successfully and sustainably implemented;

The Opening of Connaught Special School -

The expansion of JFK Special School

The Centralisation of Financial Processes

Our role as an ITT partner for Ambition Institute

Barons Court Conversion

The partnershlp with The Safeguarding Group to ensure safeguardlng across the trust is exemplary

Transformatlonal Change Phase

Whilst.safeguarding the Trust's financial viability, ensure that the allocation and targeting of resources matches
the values of the trust by refining and enhancing our financial and budgetary systems & mechanisms.

. Developlng and a implementing a route map to GAG Pooling .

Ensuring our 0-5 provisions are financially sustainable

Maximising the opportunities of pooled procurement

« Improving the consistency and efficiency of our catering and cleaning provision

. Consrderlng how centralising employment costs might support the delivery of our trust values

Ensure that the trust is in'a strong posmon for growth - particularly where there are opportunities to enhance
expertrse in SEND, leadership/school development orto |mpact where it is most needed.

.Refreshing the clarity of our shared vision, mission and values.

Ensuring that our Due Diligence Process regarding new opportunities is as effective as possible
Improving available management information by implementing the Arbor MIS.

Improving the quality of both our internal and external communications systems and processes
Developing and implementing a clear trading strategy

Enhancing the quality and depth of the available specialist expertrse available for our schools

Improve-the Quality of Education in our schools by implementing the Trust School Improvement Strategy, fully.
utilising the School Improvement Team to drive the trust wide initiatives contained within it.

¢ Embedding the review and evaluation cycle developed in 22/23.

‘e Rolling out Incremental Coachlng, by maximising the use of Steplab, across the trust :

¢ Implementing a Trust Leaders of Education model with experts and SDECIaIIStS taking on more responsnbmty
for curriculum and pedagogy within the trust :

. Enhancmg our leadership development offer, particularly for those leaders who are not teachers

Page 18 '



-DocuSign Envelope ID: 6B577193-457F-4478-8381-A10B09SFB2E4

Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Plans for future periods (continued) -

Exploratory Phase

Investigate effective practice (both within and external to LiHT) in supporting vulnerable pupils to support us in
our intent to universally impact upon those who need our support the most.

Indicative Areas of focus;

o Attendance

¢ Pupils.Mental Health and Wellbelng

e Family and Community Liaison

e Support for School Social Inclusion Teams
Auditor

Insofar as the trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the compan)fs auditor is unaware :
o the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to. establish that the auditor i is aware of the information.

Kreston Reeves LLP; has indicated its willingness to continue in office. The Trustees will propose a motion re-
appointing the auditor at a meetlng of the Members.

The Trustees' report was approved by order of the Board of Trustees as the company directors, on
and signed on its behalf by:

~

DocuSigned by: DocuSlgned by

Pun Syimlcs. S - U)lU:u,

1A2FC7CC944B4EA...
. 671206681765452
B Spinks . ' . . G Wilkie )
_Chair of Trustees R : Accounting Officer
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

‘Governance Statement

Scopc of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Learning in Harmony Trust has an
. effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to

manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to.achieve business objectives, and can prowde only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. .

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the gmdance in DfE’s Governance Handbook and
: competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Off icer, as accountmg
officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They:
are also responsible for reportlng to the Board .of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal
control.

: Governance.

The information on governance included here supplements. that described-in the Trustees' report and in the
Statement of trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times.during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee ‘ _ . Meetings attended Out of a possible

- Gary Wilkie CEO . 5 : 5
Heidi Hinchliffe (HR & OD Chalr) c ‘ :
Phil Haslett(resigned 11 October 2023)
Peter Saville
Lesley Cartmell (Finance Committee Chair)
_Ben Spinks, Chair of Trustees '
Chilufya Mulenga (Risk & Audit Chair)
Gulbanu Kader (appointed 28.09.22)
Dan Morrow (appointed 07.12.22)
Penny Swain (appointed 07.12.22)
‘M Habbas

ORANWWLWORARANDW
obhbOOTOOITOIOO

Conflicts of interest

All Trustees, Members, senior leaders, and staff with budgetary responsibility are required to complete an annual
‘declarations of interest form. The register. of interests is maintained throughout the year, and is a standing item
on each Board and governing body meeting. Staff are made aware that the purpose of the declarations of
interest and the register itself is to ensure that employees and those within the governance structure adhere to
the Seven Principles of Public Life, and that we are open and transparent about personal interests and. that all .
decisions are made with good intent and clear information.

Where a conflict might occur it is a procedural requirement that the potential conflict is disclosed'and considered-
‘by those with responsibility for making decisions in order that the Trustees can act in the Trust’s best interests.

~ Governance reviews.

During the 2022/23 financial year Trustées undertook a skills audit to ensure that gaps in skills could be
identified and used to support future trustee recruitment. In addition the Trustees undertook the annual review of
the scheme of delegatlon and reviewed the terms of reference for each of the sub-committees of the Trustee,
Board.

In addition during the yeér the ESFA undertook a Finance Management and Governance Audit, each of the six
. recommendations have been fully irpplemented by the Trust.
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. Learning in Harmony Muiti Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)
Governance (continued) _

The Finance Committee is a sub committee of the main board of Trustees. Its purpose is to ensure that the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook in relation to robust oversight of the financial aspects of the Trust
are fulfilled through receiving regular financial reports, ensuring that bank accounts, financial systems are
effectively operating and reviewing budget recommendations. During the 2023/24 financial year, the committee
also received reassurances on the oversight of capital expenditure projects across the Trust. The committee will
report to the Trustees, but can refer significant issues directly to Members where Trustees fail to act
appropriately. : i

Attendance during the year at meetings Wa_s as follows:

“Governor Meetings attended Out of a possible
L Cartmeli-(Chair) 5 - 5 ‘

P Haslett 1 5

D Morrow . 2 4

R White (co-opted accountant) 5 5

H Patel (co-opted accountant) 4 5

During the year H Hincliffe stepped down from the Committee.

The Audit and Risk Committee is also a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. Its purpose is to ensure
that the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook in relation to risk management and internal scrutiny are
fulfilled through establishing a programme of internal scrutiny to provide independent assurance to the board that
its financial and non-financial controls and risk management procedures are operating effectively, this includes
premises and health.and safety risks. : '

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Governor . | : ‘ Meetings attended " Outofa possible
C Mulenga (Chair) 5 ‘ ‘ 5
P Savile - ) -4 : S
D. Myatt (co-opted, appointed 12 July 2023) 0 0

The Quality of Education Committee is a newly formed committee of the main board of Trustees during the
period of this report. The Quality of Education Committee’s purpose is to review, support and challenge the
schools’ self evaluations of educational provision and standards, including attainment and progress data, and the
personal behaviour and development of pupils at and across all of the Trust's schools. )

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Governor ) ' ' Meetings attended ~~ Out of a possible
G Kader (Chair) 3 . .3 '
L Cartmell ' 2 3

-D Morrow . ‘ 1. : : . 3
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‘Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by gularantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Governance (continued)

The HR and Orgamsatlonal Development Comnmittee is also a sub- commlttee of the main board of Trustees.
Its purpose is to form the CEQ'’s annual appraisal panel, as well as having the delegated authority to approve the
proposed pay scales for all staff within-the Trust. The Committee monitors the implementation of HR policies
and strategies across the Trust and provudes support and chaIIenge on HR decisions.

-4

" Governor . . Meetings attended - Out of a possible

H-Hinchliffe 1 "2
P Saville 2 2
B Spinks 1 2
J Herron. (co-opted) 0 1.
T Inverary (co-opted) 2 2

During the year J Herron stepped down from the Committee..
Review of value for money

" As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. »

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the board of Trustees where value for money can-be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting off icer for the Academy Trust has delivered
improved value for money durlng the year by: .

» -Reviewing the functions of the Trust and Academies, challenging how and why services are provided, always
looking for efficiencies and |mprovements Estabhshlng a strateglc plan and roadmap to achieve those
efficiencies/improvements.

) Consultlng with stakeholders prior to any major deC|S|ons being made for example the use of trust wide
service level agreements with external providers.

e Working -alongside the Chief Operating Officer to review all contracts and éensure best value for money

particularly during the Tendering process or future potential builds.

Ensuring re-tendering processes are in line with the Academy Trust Handbook.

Seek opportunities for resource management to capitalise on available funding.

Continuous scrutiny by internal and external auditors and other experts the Trust thinks would add value.

The Trust has also employed the services of an external party to look at Fundralsmg opportunities.

The Trust uses the expertise of Bellrock, a facilities management company, in order to support with the

procurement, oversite, delivery and value for money of key capital projects.

Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable levél rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims .and objectives; it-can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
- assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on?going process designed to identify

- and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the - A

likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Learnlng in Harmony Trust for
the period 1st September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements

\
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Learning in Harmony Muiti Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance- Statement (continued)

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the. key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 01 September 2022 to 31 August 2023
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed
by the board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
_ information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
‘accountability. In particular, it includes: :

e comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports

.- which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees; :

e regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance agalnst the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

¢ setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

e clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital mvestment) gurdellnes and

« * identification and management of rlsks

The Board of Trustees has appointed MHA Maclntyre‘Hudson as internal auditor. The Trustees chose to
engage an external scrutineer in order to ensure that there was independence, rigour and accountability within
the process. The risk register is used as the basis for designing the internal audit programme.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy Trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

e Business Continuity Preparedness .
‘ * Recruitment and Retention .
¢ Financial Planning and Budgetary Control

A8

On a termly basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the Risk and Audit committee on

the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities

and annually prepares a short annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key
findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year

progress. -

The internal scrutiny programme was completed on schedule under each contract, key fi ndlngs were as follows:

o Business Continuity - the auditors reported that the Trustee Board can take Adequate Assurance over the
controls currently in place There were no high priority findings.

¢ Recruitment and Retention - the auditors reported that the Trustee Board can take Substantial Assurance
from the controls in place. There were no high priority findings. .

e Financial Planning and Budget Control - the auditors reported that the Trustee Board can take Substantial
Assurance from he controls in place. There were no high. priority findings.

In addition, throughout the year the internal scrutiny programme of work that was reported to the committee
included the annual General Data Protection Audit - adequate reassurance and the Health and Safety audit
reports undertaken by the external competent person serwce
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
..(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statemenf {continued)

Review of effectlveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by: )

" e the work of the internal auditor
e the work of the external auditor:
¢ the school resource - management self-assessment tool .
o the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsnblhty for the development
and malntenance of the |nternal control framework .

The accounting officer has-been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system'of internal
control by the Risk and Audit committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement
of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

Bun Sp im)cs o | - [4"‘“1 (ilkie

1A2FC7CCB448454“_ 67120668176E452...

B Spinks . ' s G Wilkie
Chair of Trustees . Accounting Officer
Date: 12/12/2023 L 12/12/2023
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee) . -

Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting ofﬂcer of Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify
the academy trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates

* safety and management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of
State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy
Trust Handbook 2022, including responsibilities for estates safety and management

_ | confirm that | and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
all funds by the ‘Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date: If any instances are identified after the date of this statement these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

DocuSigned by:
[gm, ke
) 67120668176E452...
G Wilkie
Accounting Officer.
Date: 12/12/2023
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities
For the year ended 31 August 2023

. The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the finandial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts” Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law;
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, -

" including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to: .

select smtable accountlng policies and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and pnnmples of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction

2022 to 2023;

e  make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and-explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the.going concern basis unless it is |nappropr|ate to presume that the

chantable company will continue in busmess

The Trustees are responsnble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of

_the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taklng
reasonable steps for the preventlon and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its-conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the -
purposes intended. .

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance .and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Pun Spinks - | Eém? (Wilkie

1A2FCTCC944B4Ed... 67120868176E452...

B Spinks _ ' ’ ' .G Wilkie :
Chair of Trustees o Accounting officer .
Date: 12/12/2023 ’ 12/12/2023
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‘Learning'in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditor’'s Report on the financial statements to the Members of Learnmg in Harmony Multl
Academy Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust (the ‘academy') for the
year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the
Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting

Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities- -

SORP 2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 lssued by the Education and Skills Fundlng
Agency
In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy’s affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its‘incoming
resources and appllcatnon of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year.then ended;

' ~e  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice; and
. -have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companues Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
- Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit-in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are- mdependent of the Academy in accordance with the
. ethical requurements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respon5|blllt|es in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have .obtained is sufficient and

appropnate to prowde a basis for our opinion.
~

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the. financial statements is approprlate

Based on the work we have performed we. have not identified any material uncertainties relatlng to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at Ieast twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees wnth respect to going concern are descrlbed in the
relevant sections of thus report. )
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Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Learning in Harmony Multi
Academy Trust (continued)

Other information -

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditor's report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In 6ur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are

prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ report. . :

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters |n relation to which the Companies Act 2006 .
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: : .

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our-audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or :
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Trustees" remuneration specified by law are not made; or-

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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‘Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Learning in Harmony Multi
Academy Trust (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always. detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below: '

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Academy Trust and the sector and through discussion with the Trustees and
other management (as required by auditing standards), we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to child protection and safeguarding, health and safety and employment law.
We considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We
also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006, Statement of Recommended Practice, Academies Accounts
Direction, Academies Trust Handbook, taxation, and pension legislation. We communicated identified laws and
regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.
We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements
(including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting
inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure, management bias in accounting
estimates and judgemental areas of the financial statements such as the valuation of land and buildings and
revenue and non-compliance with financial management and governance requirements which are consistent
with the obligations of public funded bodies. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

¢ Discussions with management and assessment of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations (including regulations related to child protection and safeguarding, health and safety
and employment law) and fraud, and review of the reports made by management and internal audit; and

o Assessment.of identified fraud risk factors; and .

« Identifying and assessing the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent and .

detect fraud; and

» Consideration of income streams, completeness of income and compliance with the obligations of funders

including the ESFA )

e Testing of internal controls procedures relating to expenditure potentially more susceptible to fraud and other
irregularities including the misuse of public funding in areas such as cash, payroll and credit card
expenditure; and :

. Review of cash and credit card expenditure to confirm no evidence of personal benefit; and
Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates; and
Checking and reperforming the reconciliation of key control accounts; and
Performing analytical procedures with automated data analytics to identify any unusual or unexpected
relationships, including related party transactions, that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to
fraud; and

o. Confirmation of related parties with management and revnew of transactuons throughout the period to identify

any previously undisclosed transactions with related parties outside the normal course of business; and

e Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and

reviewing correspondence with relevant tax and regulatory authorities; and

« Review of internal controls and physical inspection of tangible assets susceptible to fraud or irregularity; and
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Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Learningin Harmony Multi

Academy Trust (contmued)

~

Review of significant and unusual transactions and-evaluation of the underlymg financial rationale supportlng
the transactions; and . '
Identifying and testing journal entrles in pamcular any manua| entries made at the year end for financial
statement preparation. .

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

‘scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from-error, as fraud may invoive
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness
of the Academy’s internal control. .

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polncnes used and the reasonableness of accountlng
estimates and related disclosures made by the Trustees., )

Conclude on_the appropriateness of the Trustees' use of thé going concern basus of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a going concern. If we qonclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in my Auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my Auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Academy to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

‘manner that achieves fair presentation. - - . v

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and -significant. audit fndlngs including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audlt :
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Independent auditor's Report on the fmanmal statements to the Members of Learning in Harmony Multi
Academy Trust (contmued) : :

Use of our report

- This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
-Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's:report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

Peter Manser FCA DChA (Senior statutory audltor)
for and on behalf of

Kreston Reeves LLP

Chartered Accountants -

Statutory Auditor

Chatham Maritime -

20 December 2023
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Indepei(\dent Repoﬁing Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Learning in Harmony Multi
Academy Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 23 August 2023 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2022 to 31
August 2023 have been applied to the purposes identifi ed by Parliament and the financial transactions conform
to the authorities which govern them.

This repor‘( is made solely to Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms
. .of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Learning in Harmony Multi
Academy Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Learning in
Harmony Multi Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed..

Respective responsibilities of Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust's accounting officer
and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust's
funding. agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 27 August 2014 and the Academy Trust
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parllament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them. . : -

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academles Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come’
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
_income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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~ Independent Reportlng Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Learning in Harmony Multl ;
: Academy Trust and the Educatlon & Skills Fundlng Agency (contlnued)

Approach

" We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as

defined in our engagement letter. o .

The objectlve of a llmlted assurance engagemient is to berform such procedures as to obtain information and

~ explanations .in order to provnde us with suffi cnent appropnate evidence to express a negative conclusmn on

regulanty . .

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement: and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
" might be identiﬂed in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examlnatlon on a test basns of evidence relevant to the regulanty and propriety of the
Academy's income and expenditure.
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Academy Trust and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusions includes:

Reviewed the evidence used to support the Accounting Officer's sign off of the regularity statement
Reviewed expenditure against specific terms of grant funding within the Funding Agreement

Reviewed grants have been applied for the purposes intended -

Confirmed that internal control procedures exist relating to expenditure incurred of cash and credit cards
Confirmed items claimed on cash and credit cards are not for personal benefit

Reviewed expenditure and considered whether any supplies are from related parties

-Reviewed Board of Trustee minutes for declaration of interests

Considered whether other income activities are permitted within the Academy Trust's charitable objects
Considered if borrowing agreements |nc|ud|ng leases, have been made in accordance with the Academy
Trust Handbook 2022

Considered if the Trust's governance arrangements and composmon comply with the Academy . i
Trust Handbook 2022

Confirmed procurement and tendenng procedures exnst relating to expenditure and have been complied wnth

Conclusion -

In the course of eur work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the

" expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been
- applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them.

/

Reporting Accountant
Kreston Reeves LLP
Chartered Accountants

Date: 20 December 2023 .
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

" Statement of financial actlvmes (lncorporatmg income and expenditure account)

For the year ended 31 August. 2023

‘ ‘Restricted -
Unrestricted .  Restricted - fixed asset Total" Total
funds funds funds funds funds
' 2023 2023 2023 - 2023 2022
Note : : £ £ S £ £
Income from: '
Donations and capital A
. grants: S 4
"Transfer from local ‘
authority on .
‘conversion . - o - - . . . 4,884,189
Other donations and : A . .
capital grants . - 150,642 - 1,160,675 1,311,317 1,007,269
_ Other trading activities A 1,773,819 - - 1,773,819 2,480,426
Investments 7 - 707 - - 707 554
Charitable activities : - . 44135138 - 44,135,138 . 41,338,078
Total income. 1,925,168 . 44,135,138 : 1,160,675 47,220,981 49,710,516
Expehditure on: o ) ‘ . ,
- Charitable activities - 1,796,292 44,752,344 . 2,847,866 49,396,502 48,897,605
‘Total expenditure '1,796,292 . 44,752,344 2,847,866 .49,396,502 . 48,897,605
Net . :
income/(expenditur R : : : : o
- e) , 128,876 (617,206) {1,687,191) (2,175,521) 812,911
Transfers between o i C '
funds - .18 (163,206) 163,206 - - -
Net movement in i
funds .before other
recognised — - — — "
gains/(losses) (34,330) (454,000) (1,687,191) (2,175,521) - 812,911
Other recognised
gains/(losses):
~Actuarial gains on
" defined benefit: . : . » :
pension schemes 24 - 5,286,000 - 5,286,000 24,345,000
Net movement in : ‘ : : :
funds (34,330) - 4,832,000  (1,687,191) 3,110,479 25,157,911
Reconciliation of
~ funds: - _ C
Total funds brought. , . ’ . ’ -
forward _ 2,683,738 . (5,446,000) 96,280,344 93,518,082 68,360,171
Net movement in f'unds (34,330) 4,832,000 (1,687,191) 3,110,479 25,157,911
.Total funds carried e : ' ' —
forward- 2,649,408 (614,000) 94,593,153 96,628,561 93,518,082
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Learning in Harmpny Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Y

Statement of financial activities (incorporaiing income and expenditure account) (continued)
For the year ended-31 August 2023 : .

~ The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 39 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)
Registered number: 09148738

Balance sheet -
As at 31 August 2023

2022 -

2023
Note £ £ .
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 15 93,141,065 94,787,137
93,141,065 94,787,137

Current assets

Debtors 16 1,982,023 1,202,215
Cash at bank and in hand - 5,552,938 - 6,545,112

. 7,534,961 7,747,327.
Creditors: amounts falling due within one . _ ' : .
year ‘ 17 (3,433,465) (3,570,382) '

Net current assets 4,101,496 4,176,945
Total assets less current Iiabilities. 97,242,561 98,964,082
Net assets excluding pension liability 97,242,561 98,964,082
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 24 ’ (614,000) (5,446,000)
Total net assets 96,628,561 93,518,082
Funds of the Academy
Restricted funds: A

' Fixed asset funds 18 94,593,153 96,280,344

Restricted funds excluding pension asset 18 94,593,153 96,280,344 :
Pension reserve ‘ 18 (614,000) (5;446,000)
Total restricted funds 18 © 93,979,153 90,834,344
Unrestricted income funds 18 2,649,408 2,683,738 -
Total funds - 96,628,561 . 93,518,082

The fi nanmal statements on pages 35 to 67 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are

signed on their behalf, by:

DocuSigned by: DocuSlgncd by
Chair of Trustees 1A2FCTCCO44B4ES.. Accounting Officer 67120068176€452...

Date: 12 December 2023

‘The notes on pages 39 to 67 form part of these financial statements,
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust -
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of césh flows
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Cash flows frorﬁ operating activities

Net casﬁ (used in)/provided by operéting activities
Césh flows from in\_/estin'g acti\}ities |

Change in césh and cash equivalents in the yéa'rv .
Ca$h and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 39 to 67 form part of these financial statements

Page 38

Note

20

21

22,23

2023 2022
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Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

“Notes to the financial statements -

For the year ended 31 August 2023 A

1.

General information

Learning In Harmony Trust is a charitable company limited'by guarantee and an exembt,charity
incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office is Hartley Primary School, Hartley Avenue,
London, E6 INT. The principal activity of the Academy Trust is to provide® an education for pupils that

_ satisfies the requirements of the Education Act 2002.

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied 'cpnéistently,

. except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set'out below.

- 21

2.2

23

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement-of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the- UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the.
Charities Act 201 1 and the Companies Act 2006.

. Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entlty under FRS

102.

The financial statements‘are rounded to the nearést pound.

The functional éurrency repreéentéd in the financial statements are in GBP.
Goin§ concern |

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are ahy

" material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of

the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy's-ability to continue
as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in prepanng
the fmancnal statements. .

Income

_ All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitiement to the funds, the receipt is

probable and the amount can be measured reliably..

Grants

Grants are included in the .Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant

funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-

related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred -
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for whfch

it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability. '
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‘Notes to the financial statements.
For the year ended 31 August 2023

2. Accounting policies (continued)

. 2.3 Income (continued)

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent -

amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

« Donations
Donations are recognlsed ona recelvable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

e Other income ’

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year itis recelvable and to the extent -
the Academy has provided the goods or services.

« Transfer on conversion

Where- assets and liabilities are received by the Academy on conversion to an academy, the

- transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet at the point when
the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Academy. An equal amount of income is recognised
as. a transfer on conversion within ‘Income from Donatlons and Capital Grants' to the net assets
received. .

o Donated fixed assets (excluding tran'sfers on conversion or into the Academy)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to -

measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is

recognlsed as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants" and a corresponding amount is included

in the appropriate fixed asset category and deprecuated over the useful economic life in accordance
- with the Academys accountlng policies. : .

.2.4 Expenditure

- Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settiement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably: Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with -

" the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent and depreciation
" charges allocated on the pomon of the asset s use.

e Charitable actlvmes o

These are costs incurred on the Academy's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
2.5 Government grants
Government grants relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income and released to

the Statement of financial -activities over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned..Other
grants are credited to the Statement of financial activities as the related expenditure is incurred.
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For the year ended 31 August 2023

2,

Accounting policies (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Interest receivable
Interest on funds held on deposit is' included when receivable and the amount can be measured.
reliably by the Academy; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable .by the
institution wnth whom the funds are deposnted .

Taxation

The Academy is considered to pasé the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act

2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is. potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are

applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capntalised as tanglble fi xed assets and are carried at cost, net of-

depreciation and any provision for |mpa|rment

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the

government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated

over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset

fund in the. Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on

the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial

activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, deprecnatlon on

such assets is charged to the unrestrlcted fund.

Depreciation is provided on' all tangible fi xed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the f’ollow‘ing bases:

Freehold property - Bunldlngs 50 years, Land Nil
Furniture and equipment - -3Years -
Computer equipment - 3 Years.

. A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as lmpalrments Impairment

- losses are recogmsed in the Statement of financial activities.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognlsed at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepald net of any trade discounts due.

2.10 Cash at bank and in hand .

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity .
of three months or less from thé date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.
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For the year ended 31 August 2023

2.' Accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

212 Financial instruments

The Academy only holds baS|c financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and )
‘ f nancial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows: .

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial lnstruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortlsed cost as deta||ed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments. ’

Cash at bank is classified as a basuc financial instrumeént and is measured at face vaIue

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income -is not deemed to be a financial

_ liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obllgatlon to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial mstrument .

213 Operatmg leases .

Rentals paid under operating Ieases are charged to the Statement of financial activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

2.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The .contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated -as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate. ¢

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabiiities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. .Net interest. on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets.is recognised in other recognised gains and losses."
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S 2. Acl:cou'ntingﬂ policies (continued)
214 Pensione (continued)

Actuarial gains and Iosses.ere‘recognised immediately in other recognised gains andbiosses.
215 Agehcy arrangements

.Where the Trust acts as agent in collecting and / or distributing from the:- ESFA or others, and
subsequent disbursements are excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities as the Trust does -
not have control over charitable application of the funds. The funds received and pald and any
balances held are disclosed in note 28 ‘

2.16 Fund accountmg

' Unrestrlcted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees

. Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be apphed to specific capital purposes
|mposed by the funders where the asset acqunred or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprlse all other restricted funds received wuth restrictions imposed by the
- funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Educatlon ‘Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the ap'propriate-fund.

3. Critical accbunting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations’ of future events that are believed to be reasonable under .the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Multi-employer benefit pension scheme .

‘The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined. on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
" assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensijons include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the
_pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2021 has:been used. by the actuary in valuing.the pensions liability at 31
August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
“actuarial valuation would impact on-the carrying amount of the pension liability.
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Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment (continued)

Tangible fixed assets

The Academy Trust has recognised tangible fixed assets with a carrying value of £93,141k at the reporting
date (see note 15). These assets are stated at their cost less provision for depreciation and impairment.
The Academy Trust's accounting policy sets out the approach to ‘calculating depreciation for immaterial
assets acquired. For material assets such as land and buildings the Academy.Trust determines at
acquisition reliable ‘estimates - for the useful life of the asset, its residual value and
decommissioning costs. These estimates are based upon such factors as the expected use of the

- acquired asset and market conditions. At subsequent reporting dates the Trustees consider whether there

are any factors such as technological. advancements or changes in market conditions that indicate a need
to reconsider the estimates used. . . .

Where there are indicators that the carrying value of tangible assets may be impaired the Academy Trust
undertakes tests to determine the recoverable amount of assets. These tests require estimates of the fair

value of assets less cost to sell and of their value.in use. Wherever possible the estimate of the fair value
of assets is based upon observable market prices less incremental cost for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based upon a discounted cash flow model, based upon the Academy Trusts'

~ forecasts for the foreseeable future which do not include any restructuring activities that the Academy

Trust is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance.
The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as -
well expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Critical areas of judgmentf-
Lease commitments
The Academy Trust has entered into a range of lease commitments in respect of plant and equipment.

The classification of these leases as either financial or operating leases requires the Trustees to consider
whether the terms and conditions of each lease are such that the A(_:ademy Trust has acquired the risks -

‘and rewards associated with the ownership of the underlying assets.

Multi-employer defined beneﬁt pension scheme.

Certain employees participate in a multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme with other Academy
Trusts. In the judgement of the Trustees, the Academy Trust does not have sufficient information on the
plan assets and liabilities to be able to reliably account for its share of the defined obligation and plan
assets. Therefore the scheme is accounted for as ‘a defined contrlbutlon scheme, see note 24 for further
details. :
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-4, Income from donations and capital grants
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41,338,078

- 41,338,078

" Restricted -
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total . Total
funds - funds funds funds | funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ N 3 . £
Transfer from local authority on . ;
conversion ' - - - o 4,884,189
Donations - ' ' 150,642 - - 150,642 41,246
Capital grants . g - - 1,160,675 1,160,675 966,023
150,642 - 1160675 1,311,317 5,891,458
Total 2022 736074  (820,754) 5,976,138° 5,891,458
5. Funding féf the academy trust's educational operations h
Restricted . Total Total -
funds . funds funds -
- 2023 2023 2022
- £ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants - o |
General annual grant (GAG) | 28,762,286 28,762,286 28,841,166
" Other DfE/ESFA grants . .
"Pupil Premium 12,492,036 . 2,492,036 '2,32'9,060
Other ESFA/DfE grants 2,856,142 2,856,142 1,952,203
: 34,110,464 34,110,464 - 33,122,429
Other Government grants ) ‘
Local authority grants 10,024,674 10,024,674 8,215,649
- 44,135,138 44,135,138 41,338,078
Total 2022
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" 6.- Income from other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Catering income
Other trading income

Total 2022

7. Investment income

Interest received

" TJotal 2022

8. . Expenditure

Educational operatidns

Direct costs
Support costs

Total 2022

Total

Uﬁrestricted Total
- funds funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ £ £
195653 195653 149,560
193,885 - 193,885 197,333 °
1,384,281 1,384,281 2,133,533
1,773,819 1,773,819 2,480,426
) . 2,480,426 2,480,426
Unrestricted Total . ‘Total
funds .funds funds-
2023 - 2023 12022
: £ £
707 707 . 554
554 554
 Staff Costs Premises Othér "Total Total
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
N 3 £ £ . £ £
28,721,1"62 .- 2,'343,171 31,064,333 '31‘,766;748
. 8,952,4424 . ‘4,143,384 5,236,343 18,332,169 17,130,858
- 37,673,604 4,143,384 7,579,514 49,396,502 48,897,606
38,454,480 3,799,000 6,644,126 48,897,606
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- 9. Analysis of expenditure by ‘actvivities

Educational 'operations .
Total 2022

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs
Travel costs

- Educational supblies
Educational equipment
Educational consultancy
Staff development

 Total 2022°
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: : Support Total Total
Direct costs costs funds funds‘
T 2023 2023 2023 . 2022
A £ . £ £
31,064,333 18,332,160 49,396,502 48,897,606
31,766,748 17,130,858 . 48,897,606
Total - Total
funds funds
2023 2023 - 2022
£ £ . £
28,721,162 * 28,721,162 29,770,589
341,080 341,080 113,895
875,806 - 875,806 844,937
84,750 - . 84,750 30,979 .
750,802 750,802 773,210 .
290,733 - 290,733 233,138
31,064,333 . 31,064,333 31,766,748
131,766,748 31,766,748
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-9,

10.

"Operating lease rentals .
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

-Analysis of supbdrt costs

LGPS finance pension costs
Staff costs '
Depreciation-

Repairs and maintenance
Cleaning'costs_

Light, heat and rates
Insurance costs
General office costs

" ICT costs

Other staff costs
Professional fees
Caterihg costs
Other support costs
Governance costs

Total 2022

Net incomel(ekpenditure)

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continhed)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Fees paid to auditor for:

- audit

- other services
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Total

2,000

" Total

" funds funds

2023 2023 2022
> £ £

187,000 187,000 423,000
8,661,442 8,661,442 8,450,891
2,118,649 2,118,649 1,968,006
1,594,291 1,594,291 568,502 °

1,104,983 1,104,983 1,345,891

11,194,769 1,194,769 © 990,233
141,105 141,105 132,255 .

127,739 127,739 110,898

542,656 542,656 . 399,410

57,252 57,252 225,618
300,701 300,701 626,822

1,883,943 1,883,943 1,649,398

' 389,504 - 389,594 104,909

28,045 - 28,045 135,025

18,332,169 18,332,169 17,130,858

17,130,858 17,130,858

, 2023 2022

£ £

. . 66,000 92,000

2,119,000 1,969,000

24,000 23,000
4,000
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11.  staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs-
Staff development

t
St_aff restructuring costs comprise:

' Redundancy payments
Severance payments

" . b. Severance payments

e

The Acade'my paid 1 severance. payments in the year (2022 - 3), disclosed in the following bands:

£0 - £25,000
£25,001 - ES0,000

c. Spei:ial staff severance payments

2023 2022
o |
26,113,301 ° 24,831,720
2,508,250 2,398,243
5,352,053 7,837,517
33,973,604 35,067,480
3,166,000 2,930,000
243,000 224,000 .
291,000 233,000
37,673,604 38/454,480
2023 2022
£ £
224,000. 154,000
19,000 - 70,000
243,000 224,000 -
2023 2022
. No. No.
1 2

Included ‘in staff restructuring costs are non- statutory/non contractua| severance payments totalllng £19k

(2022: £70k). This compnsed of one payment of £19k.
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11.  Staff (continued)

d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:

’

2023 2022

No. No.

Teachers - . : - - 317 341
Admin and Support s . - 4 634. 670
Management v ' o ‘ 57 49

1,008 - 1,060
The average headcount'expressed as full-time equivalents was:

12023 2022

.No. = . No. .
Teachers’ oo , o ' Cn 202 0 311
Admin and support ~ ‘ o : ' ‘ 367 © 363
Management - o 53 48

N ‘ T : 712 722

e. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excludlng employer pension costs) exceeded

£60,000 was:

2023 - 2022
S _ , ‘ No. No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 S : KT A 21
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 : : . o 18 o120
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 R - , 5 3
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 . ' 3 3
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 R 5 3
_In the band £150,000 - £160,000 ' B B . - 1

In the band £160,000 - £170,000 = ' - 1. .l

f. Key management pers‘onneI\ . ‘ ' o oL

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer-

- pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the Academy was £906k (2022 - £747k). - .

Page 50



Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by gual_'antee)

Notes to the financial statements '
For the year ended 31 August 2023

12.  Central services . .

" The Academy has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Legal Advice

CEO Costs
. Company Secretary costs
H&S systems management costs

Marketing and Publicity

Central Office Infrastructure

Cost of Apprentice Levy

HR and Payroll costs -
Governing Body Clerking services

The Academy charges for these services on the following basis:
8.9% (2022: 7.0%) of pupil funded income. . '

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

Temple Sutton Primary School
New North Academy '
Hartley Primary School

Upton Cross Primary

John F Kennedy School
Sheringham Primary School
Blenheim Primary School
Drew Primary School
Greenways Primary School
Edwards Hall Primary

Total

Training and Development for Dlrectors
Cost of trust related coaching and training -
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' Consultant support for structures/sponsorship application. :
Consultancy support for due diligence process for further converters or sponsorshlps
Statutory accounting, Finance Monltorlng/Support and audit costs

Insurances apart from minibus and supply cover insurance

2023

2022
£ £
319,000 258,000
178,000 135,000
368,000 307,000
369,000 356,000
459,000 - 443,000
347,000 288,000
284,000 217,000 -
277,000 - 213,000
364,000 293,000
171,000 87,000
3,136,000 2,597,000 |
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13.

14.

Trustees' remuneration and expenses
One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has' received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy. The principal.and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services

- they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment

The value of Trustees' remuneratlon and other benef ts was as follows:

2023 2022

: . . B £ £

G Wilkie, Accounting Officer - Remuneration . 160,000 - 150,000 -
/ ' - | 165,000 * 155,000

Pension contributions paid . . 20,000 -

: : 25,000

During the year ended 31 August 2023, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2022 - £NIL).

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education's- risk protection arrangement (RPA), an -
. alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects

trustees and officers from claims arising from. negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not p055|b|e to quantify the trustee and
ofﬁcers mdemnlty element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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15.- Tangible fixed assets

Ldng-térm Furniture _
) leasehold and Computer
g . property equipment equipment " Total -
- £ : £ £
Cost or valuation 4 o

At 1 September 2022 99,966,47Q 3,403,677 1,012,627 104,382,774
Additions ' - 351,907 12("),670: 472,577

At 31 August 2023 99,966,470 3,755,584 . | 1,133,297 104,855,351 ‘

Depreciation : : ' , .
. At'1 September 2022 . 6,746,183 2,019,673 829,781 9,595,637
‘Charge for the year 1,207,521 ' 789,846 121,282 2,118,649
At 31 August 2023 7,953,704 2,809,519 . 951,063 11,714,286

Net book value
At 31 August 2023 92,012,766 946,065 182,234 93,141,065
At 31 August 2022 93,220,287 1,384,004 182,846 94,787,137
Included in land and buildings is land valued at £38,638k (2022: £38,638k)
_16. Debtors

2023 2022

£ £

Due wit_hih one year .
Trade debtors 937,623 168,196
Other debtors 210,378 - 173,012
Prepayments and accrued income 834,022 861,007

1,982,023 - 1,202,215
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17. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year ‘

2023 2022

A . o 3 £

" Bank overdrafts ' ' o a - 103
Trade creditors L | ‘ - 813986 1,250,560
Other taxation and social security - o 0 604,462 - 598,668
Other creditors . 1 : _ | 640,132 583,602

Accruals and deferred income . ) ’, . , - 1,374,885 1,137,359

3,433,465 3,570,382

2023 ' 2022

, : : . £ £
Deferred fncome at 1 September 2022 - ' - -~ 472,000 1,031,000

Resources deferred during the year - - - 575,000 - 472,000

~Amounts released from brevious periods _ L - ‘ (472,000) (1,031,000)
S« T . 575000 472,000

At the balance sheet date the trust wes holding funds for UIFSM, High Needs and Early Years.'
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18. - Statement of funds

Balance at 1

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be‘applied are as follow5'

Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 . Income Expenditure " in/out (Losses) . 2023
£ £ e S X s £ £
Unrestricted .
funds. :
General Funds - 2,683,738 1,925,168  (1,796,292) - (163,206) - 2,649,408
" Restricted
funds
. General Annual : '

Grant (GAG) - - 28,762,286 (28,925,492) 163,206 . -
Pupil Premium - 2,492,036 - (2,492,036). - - -
Other DfE/ESFA o .

grants - 2,856,141  (2,856,141) - - -
Other E

government o ’

grants - 10,024,675 (10,024,675) - - -
Pension reserve  (5;446,000) - (454,000) - 5,286,000 (614,000) -

(5,446,000) 44,135,138 (44,752,344) _163,206' - 5,286,000 (614,000)
Restricted fixed
asset funds
'Restricted fixed - .

asset fund . 94,787,137 - (2,118,649) 472,577 - - 93,141,065
ESFA/DE - - o o .

capital grants 1,493,207 1,160,675 ‘- (729,217) (472,577). - 1,452,088 -

96,280,344 1,160,675  (2,847,866) . . - 94,593,153
Total Restricted . ' B _
funds . 90,834,344 45,295,813 (47,600,210) 163,206 5,286,000 93,979,153
Balanée at1 ] - Balance at
September ) : : Transfers _ Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) - - 2023
o A £ £ £ £ ‘ - £ £
Total funds 93 518,082 47,220,981 (49,396,502) - 5,286,000 - 96,628,561

P R ——————————— —_——‘,

" Unrestricted funds are applled to the general work of the Academy Trust to support actwmes inside and
. outside the curriculum.
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18.

Statement of funds (contlnued)
GAG rebresents funds to-be used to cover the normal running costs of the Academy Trust.

Pupil premium funding is provided in order to be used to support disadvantaged pupils and to assist them
in decre‘asing the attainment gap between those pupils and their peers.

UIFSM supports schools in delivering the legal requirement to offer free school meals to all reception, year
1 and year 2 pupils.

- Teachers' pay and pension grants are to provide support to schools in respect of the teachers pay
_awards. .

Other DfE/ESFA grants represents grants provided for speciﬁo purposes, such as rates relief and PE and -
sports premium is funding to make additional and sustarnable improvements to the quality of the PE
physical activity and sport schools provide. -

Other government grants represent those grants provided for specrf c purposes to provide addrtronal
support to the pupils where: reqmred

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund represents the net book value of tangible fixed assets. Transfers Within
this section were made to ensure the analysrs correctly reflected tangible fi xed assets and capital grants
avallable to spend.

The DfE/ESFA capltal grants fund is to provide the Academy Trust with |ts own caprtal money to address

_rmprovements to buildings and other facrlrtres

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023. ‘

- Page 56



. '(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements -
For the year ended 31 August 2023

18.

Statement of funds (continued)

Leérning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust

. Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

5,976,138

"Balance at : Balance at
1-September ' _Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) ..2022
, £ £ : £ SRS S £ £
Unrestricted :

funds» . L . A
General Funds 12,923,247 2,480,581 (797,164)  (1,922,926) - 2,683,738
Transfer from : : - : '

local authority

conversation S . 736,074 ‘ - (736,074) - -

2,923,247 3,216,655 (797,164) (2,659,000) - 2,683,738 .
‘Restricted

general funds
General Annual , o : -

Grant (GAG) - - 28,841,166 (30,100,166) 1,259,000 ' - -
Pupil ‘Premium ’ - 2,329,060  (2,329,060) - oo -
Other DfE/ESFA ' L .

grants - . - 1,952,203  (1,952,203) - - -
Other S
‘government . R

grants. - 8215649 (8,215,649) - - -
Other income - . - 140,846 (40,846) - - -

~ Transfer from '

local authority . 3

on conversion . - (862,000) - 862,000 - -
Pension reserve (25,697,000) - (3,232,000) (862,000) 24,345,000  (5,446,000)

. (25,697,000) 40,516,924 (45,869,924) 1,259,000 24,345,000  (5,446,000)
Restricted fixed

asset fu;mds
Restricted fixed ' o o

asset fund 90,566,605 - (1,968,006) . 6,188,538 - 94,787,137
ESFA/DfE B 4 . o .

capital grants 567,000 966,023 (262,423) 222,607 | - 1,493,207
Transfer from ‘ ' : :

local authority , ST ‘ A

on conversion - 5,010,115 - " (5,010,115) - -

. >91_,133,6’05 (2.230,429) 1,401,030 - 96,280,344
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at . ‘ - Balance at

1 September o Transfers - Gains/ 31 August
2021 - Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) . -2022
' £ g 7 £ ‘ £ , £ 4 £
Total Restricted ' : . : ‘ ‘
- funds 65,436,605 46,493,062 (48,100,353) 2,660,030 24,345,000 90,834,344
Balanceat - : ' S Balance at
1 September - - ‘“Transfers Gains/ .. 31 August
- 2021 Income Expenditure infout - (Losses) 2022
4 v £ _ £ £ £ ' £ £
Total funds 68,359,852 49,709,717 (48,897.517) . 1,030 - 24,345,000 93,518,082
Total funds analysis by academy .. . : . |
" Fund balances at431_A'ugust 2023 were allocated as follows:
2023 2022
£ £
. Temple Sutton Primary Schoo‘I' o ' o 1,000 1,000
New North Academy o SR 1,000 1,000
Hartley Primary School : : ' ' 1,000 1,000
Upton Cross Primary  + : : 1,000 1,000
"John F Kennedy School . : o ' - 1,000 1,000
Sheringham Primary School . o ' . 1,000 . 1,000
Blenheim Primary School : o - . 1,000 1,000
Drew Primary School h ' ' 1,000 1,000
Greenways Primary School - A : . o 1,000 1,000
Central Services ' o S ' 2,639,408 2,674,738
Edwards Hall Primary School o : 1,000 -
Total before fixed asset funds and pénsion reserve . ' 2,649,408 2,683,738
Restricted fixed asset fund o T 94,593,153 96,280,344
- Pension reserve T ' o © (614,000)  (5,446,000) .
Total - . . ' - 96,628,561 93,518,082
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18,

Statement of funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure‘inc_:urred by each a'cade‘my during the year Was as. folldv'&s:
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Teaching
- and . : :
educational .= Other : .. Other costs L '
support support Educational excluding ~ Total "Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation . 2023 . 2022
S £ £ £
" Temple Sutton . - o .
. Primary School 3,382,237 545,865 172,585 482,864 4,583,551 4,359,000
. New North ~ : S '
Academy - 1,369,716 504,240 75,015, 376,197 2,325,168 2,440,000
Hartley Primary _ : ‘ A P
School 3,099,613 542,301 251,004 828,286 4,721,204 4,784,000
Upton Cross , ‘ ' v N ' .
" Primary 2,873,425 902,840 237,536 946,068 ~ 4,959,869 5,197,000
John F Kennedy . . ‘ . . : :
School - 3,756,377 2,107,476 - -213,894 . 766,612 6,844,359 6,382,000
Sheringham : : , :
Primary School 3,207,210 398,235 180,182 805,755 4,591,382 4,379,000
* .Blenheim _ o ' o ‘ -
Primary School 2,956,932 - 580,852 211,992 . 444,092 4,193,868 3,629,000
Drew Primary - o I
School 2,116,919 634,035 170,320 520,323 3,441,597 - 3,171,000
Greenways ‘ ' ' o . }
Primary School 3,423,135 801,524 243,784 592,181 5,060,624 4,961,000
Edwards Hall ' o . Ny
Primary 1,303,741 238,806 93,525 286,825 1,922,897 1,387,000
Learning in ' ' - _ ' : : _ %
Harmony 1,231,857 1,592,268 493,334 1,315,875 4,633,334 6,240,599
Academy - 28721,162 8848442 2343171 7,365,078 47,277,853 46,929,599
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19..

Analysis of net assets between funds

. Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Total
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(5,446,000)

- Restricted :
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
' " funds - funds funds funds
‘ 2023 2023 2023 2023
j o . o - £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets o . - '93141,065 93,141,065
- Current assets ' 1,920,191 3,433,465 '.2,181,3()5 7,534,961 _
Creditors due within one year - . - (3,433,465) . - (3,433,465) -
Provisions for liabilities and charges - - (614,000) - (614,000)
Difference : 729,217 - (729,217) -
Total . 2,649,408 -(614,000) ' 94,593,153 96,628,561
Analyéis of net assets between funds - prior year
) g ' Restricted :
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
"~ funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 . 2022 2022
£ £ £ £
.Tangible fixed asséets ' . A - - 94,787,137 94,787,137
Current assets , ' 2,683,738 3,570,382 - 1,493,207 7,747,327
Creditors due within one year - oo e (3,570,382) o - (3,570,382)
Provisions for liabilities and charges . . (5,446,000) - (5,446,000)
' 2,683,738 96,280,344

93,518,082
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- 20. Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operating activities ‘

- Net (expenditure)/ihcome for 'the year (as per Statement of financial '

activities) ‘
Adjustments for:
Depreciation - S

. Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Interest receivable ' .
Transfer from local authority on conversion
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benéﬂt pension scheme finance cost
(Increase)/decrease in debtors
Decrease in creditors '

" Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

21. Cash flows from investing activities

If)ividehds, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible assets ‘
Capital grants from DfE Group '

. Cash transferred from Idcal authority on conversion

Net cash provided by investing activities

22. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank -

- Total cash and cash equivalents
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2022

2023

A £
(2175521) . © 812,911
2,118,649 1,968,006

(1,160,675) (966,023)
(707) (554)

- (4,884,189)
267,000 2,808,000
187,000 423,000
(779,807) 878,882
(136,918)  (105,000)
(1,680,979) 935,033
2023 . 2022

£ £

707 554 .
(472,577) (1,178,572)
1,160,675 966,023
- 736,074
688,805 524,079

. 2023 2022

} £ : £
5,552,938 6,545,112
5,552,938 6,545,112
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23.  Analysis of changes in net debt

, : At1 _
| September . At 31
. 2022 Cash flows August 2023
£ £ £
" Cash at bank and in hand ' . 6,545112 - (992,174) 5,552,938
Bank overdrafts repayable on'demand - '_ (103) 103 -

6,545,009 (992,911) 5,552,938
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24,

Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal 'pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme

" (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by London Borough of Newham, Essex County Council

and Islington Council. All are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

‘ As described in note 24, the LGPS obligation on conversion to an academy trust relates to the employees

of the' academy trust, who were the employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained
school and new employees who were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year/period. The
oblugatuon in respect of employees who transferred on conversion represents their cumulatlve service at
both the predecessor school and the academy trust at the balance sheet date. :

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the penod ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £591k were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £577K) and
are included W|th|n creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

_ The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by

the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for fuli-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

"The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer Retirement and other pension
benefits are pald by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the.Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future’
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about-the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The 31 March 2016 TPS actuarial valuation results were
implemented from 1 September 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation
were:

e . employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (inclu-d‘ing a 0.08% administration

levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefi its) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, glvmg a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
o the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment. return. The current
‘ SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2. 2% The
assumed nominal rate of return mcludung earnings growth is 4.45%.

The latest actuarial TPS valuation results, as at 31 March 2020, were released in October 2023. The
revised employer contribution rate, arising from this valuation, is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
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‘24,

Pension commitments (contmued) ' i A ¢

The employers pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2,708k (2022 - £3, 216k)

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website -
(https://Iwww teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out.in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi- employer pension scheme. The
Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The Academy has set out above the information available on the scheme :

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £2,557k (2022 -
£2,234k), - of Wthh employer's contnbutlons totalled £2,016k (2022 - £1,733k) and employees'.
contributions totalled £ 541k (2022 - £461k). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 225 to

- 25% per cent for employers and 5.5 to 12. 5% per cent for employees.

As described.in note the LGPS obllgatlon relates to the employees of the Academy, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
Academy at the balance sheet date. . ‘

Parllament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for. Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be- met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013. The guarantee came into
force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to
the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

Principal actuarial assumptions

\

2023 2022

. % - - %
'Rate of increase in salaries S ' . - 394 3.99
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentllnﬂatlon o - 2.89 ' 2.80
.Discount rate for scheme liabilities . T S - 530 - 426
Inflation assumption (CPI) ) . S . 2.86 2.91

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements in mortallty rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023 - 2022

Years Years
Retiring today ) . . v : )
-Males , . : o o " .20.6 214
Females. . ‘ . ' ‘ : 233 23.9
Retiring in 20 years o ' R -
Males N . U ’ S 21.9 22.7
Females : - o © 247 25.4
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24. Pension commitments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPl rate +0.1% ‘ '
CPl rate -0.1%

Salary rate +0.1%

‘Salary rate -0.1%

Share of scheme asseté

' The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities
Other bonds

" Cash

-« Property A
Alternative assets

~ Other assets - '
“Other managed funds

Total market value of assets

: ‘The 'actual' return on scheme assets was £964,000 (2022 - £384,000).

2023

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Interest income

Interest cost ~
Administrative expenses

_ Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities
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12022
£000 . £000
(503,000) - (670,000)
514,000 694,000
658,000 735,000
(640,000) - (821,000)
'500,000 661,000
~ (485,000) (643,000)
27,000 . - 42,000
(26,000)  (42,000)
 At31 At31August
. August 2023 2022
N 3 £
13,921,000 11,667,000
63,000 547,000
839,000 961,000
2,168,000 2,687,000 -
3,088,000 2,664,000
152,000 1,074,000
3,168,000 994,000
23,399,000 20,594,000
2023 2022
£ £
2,264,000 4,568,000
(919,000)  (319,000)
1,106,000 742,000
19,000 14,000
~© 2,470,000 5,005,000
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24,

25,

Pension commitments (continued)

"Changes in fhe present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows: -

2022

Operating lease commitments

- 2023 .
' £ . £
At 1 September . | 26,040,000 43,378,000
Conversion of academy trusts o : - 1,569,000 .
Current service cost ' 2,264,000 4,538,000
Interest cost 1,106,000 742,000
~ Employee contributions 541,000 461,000
Benefits paid . (572,000)  (398,000)
Past service costs - - A . ‘ L - 30,000
Actuarial gains ’ - ' (5,478,000) (24,280,000)
- At 31 August - 23,901,000 26,040,000
Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assets were as follows:
| 2023 2022
£ £
At 1 September N 20,594,000 17,681,000
Conversion of academy trusts : ‘ ) " 4 - 707,000
Actuarial (losses)/gains v ' ' {192,000) . 65,000
‘Interest income o ‘ o . 919,000 319,000
Employer contributions + 2,016,000 1,773,000
Employee contributions 541,000 461,000
Benefits paid (572,000)  (398,000)
'Administration expenses {19,000) (14,00'0) .
At 31 August , 23,287,000 . 20,594,000

At 31 August 2023lthe- Académy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

‘cancellable operating leases as follows:

2023 2022

S 3 £

Not later than 1 year . 77,000 66,000
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 116,000 86,000
193,000 152,000
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26.

27.

28.

29,

. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceedrng £NIL for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member. .

' Related party transactions

meg to the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local-
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made
on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Academy's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures relatrng to connected and related party. transactions.

The following related party transactions took place in the financial penod

Income Related Partv Transactron _

-During the year Learning in Harmony Multi Academy Trust received income from Barking and Dagenham

Schoo! Improvement Partnership (BDSIP) amounting to £11,475 (2022: £11,250) in regards to school
support. Ben Spinks, chair. of trustees is the chief executive of BDSIP At the balance sheet date BDSIP
owed the Trust £450 (2022: Nil). -

Post balance sheet events
In 2023, Learning in Harmony -Multi Academy Trust began discussions to have Barons Court Primary

School and Nursery join the Trust as an academy converter. On 21 September 2023 the Trust received
formal approval of the conversion from the East of England advisory board. No transfer date has been

~ finalised at this stage.

Cohnaught Special School formally joined the Trust on the 1 September 2023.

Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2022 the academy trust received £8k (2022 £23k) and disbursed £8k (2022:
£23k) from the fund.
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